National Rural Infrastructure Development Agency Ministry of Rural Development, Government of India

MINUTES OF THE 24TH MEETING OF GENREAL BODY (GB) OF THE NATIONAL RURAL INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (NRIDA) HELD ON 18THJANUARY, 2019 AT UNNATI CONFERENCE HALL, KRISHI BHAWAN

List of members present is at Annexure-I

At the outset JS (RC) & DG, NRIDA welcomed the President of General Body, Hon'ble Minister of Rural Development, Panchayati Raj, Drinking Water & Sanitation and President, NRIDA, Vice President of G.B., Secretary, MoRD, Additional Secretary & Financial Advisor, MoRD and other members of GB.

The Agenda items were then taken up for discussion as under:

Item No. A	Confirmation of the proceedings of the 21 st meeting of the General Body held on 8 th February, 2016 and action taken thereon DG, NRIDA informed GB that no action is pending. GB took note of the information.	
Item No. B	Confirmation of the proceedings of the 22 nd meeting of the General Body held on 22 nd August, 2016 and action taken thereon.	
Item no. II	Empanelment of New NQMs, Performance Review of the existing NQMs, Delay in Joining by NQMs and Non Compliance of Inspection Schedules issued by NRIDA	
Item no. III	General Body took note of the information. Increase in Honorarium of NQMs & STAs General Body took note of the information.	
Item no. IV	Assessment of the actual no. of NQMs required, average no. of annual inspections done vis-a-vis their quality General Body took note of the information.	
Item No. VIII	Setting up of the NTSA as a separate unit within NRIDA and renaming of NRRDA as NRIDA.	
Decision of 24 th GB	DG, NRIDA informed GB that the Registrar of Societies has accepted registration under Society Registration Act CCI of 1860 as National Rural Infrastructure Development Agency (NRIDA). She further informed that MoA and Rules and Regulations have been revised and the same would be forwarded to Registrar of Societies, after the approval of General Body.	

(2613m

	Hon'ble MRD and Secretary (RD) opined that MoS, Ministry of rural Development should also be included in the General Body of the NRIDA.	
	Revised MoA and Rules and Regulations were placed before the GB and accordingly the Members accorded their approval and put their signatures on the MoA.	
Item No. XIV	Fixation of remuneration of Shri Brij Mohan and Shri H.S. Saini engaged as consultant in NRIDA	
Decision of 24 th GB	DG, NRIDA informed GB that the matter regarding fixation of remuneration was discussed in 23 rd GB held on 03.02.2017 which decided that the matter may be settled as an administrative issue with the approval of Secretary, MoRD. IFD had also opined to take up the matter in General Body for taking final decision. Accordingly, the matter was re-examined in the light of CCA's observations as well as the advertisement issued by O/o CCA, MoRD regarding engagement of retired ACA/ Dy. CA/CA or equivalent officers as consultants at remuneration of Rs. 45,000/	
	GB approved the remuneration of Rs. 45,000/- for both the cases and approved release of the withheld amount.	
Item No. XVII	Other matters (A) All out efforts should be made to construct the targeted road length of 133 Km/day during 2016-17	
	GB took note of the information.	
	(B) The Research Report on Mapping of locally available material including waste materials has been received from CRRI. Two districts each of Bihar and Madhya Pradesh were covered under this research project.	
	GB took note of the information.	
	(C) For better quality assurance mechanism, Centre should increase its presence and focus on quality and time bound completion/monitoring of PMGSY through SRRDAs and NQMs.	
	GB took note of the information.	
Item No C	Confirmation of the proceedings of the 23 rd meeting of the General Body held on 3 rd February, 2017 and action taken thereon.	
Item No. 8	Implementation of 7 th Pay Commission in NRIDA	
Decision of 24 th GB	DG, NRIDA informed General Body that recommendations of the 7 th Pa Commission have been implemented in NRIDA with concurrence of IFD Pay of those personnel who have opted for NRIDA's pay scales have bee	

abs

	revised with the concurrence of Internal Audit Wing of Ministry of Rural Development.
	GB ratified the implementation of the 7 th CPC in NRIDA.
Item No. D	Agenda for 24 th General Body meeting
Item No. 1	PMGSY at a Glance (As on 14 th January, 2019)
	DG, NRIDA gave a brief presentation about the progress of the PMGSY project which is placed at Annexure 2.
2000 - C.	GB took note of the information.
Item No. 2	Strengthening of NRIDA
	24 01 000 11
	2A. Staff Position
Decision 24 th GB	ofDG, NRIDA informed the GB regarding the present staff position of NRIDA.
A DESCRIPTION OF	GB took note of the information.
Decision 24 th GB	 promoted/repatriated during the period of DG, NRIDA informed the GB that 16 Vacant posts have been filled since last GB and also apprised regarding the officers who have been promoted/repatriated during this period. GB took note of the information.
	2 D (i) Revision of Terms of Reference for hiring consultants for the
	post of Director and Joint Director
Decision 24 th GB	of DG, NRIDA informed that in view of insufficient response both in terms of number of officers applying for joining NRIDA and also in terms of desired qualification, a need to appropriately amend/revise the ToRs has been felt. Accordingly, the ToRs have been revised with the approval of the Hon'ble MRD to consider retired persons also to fill up the posts of Director and Joint Director (except F&A Division). The remuneration as per revised ToRs is given below:
	a) Directory Rational OP/SP at D = 1.05 1.50 1.11
	 a) Director: Retired CE/SE at Rs. 1.25-1.50 lakh p.m. b) Joint Director: Retired SE at Rs. 0.75-1.00 lakh p.m.
	GB ratified the revision in ToRs.

	2 D (ii) Increase in number of posts of Young Civil Engineers and enhancement of their remuneration
Decision 24 th GB	of DG, NRIDA informed GB that in view of the large vacancy against the posts of Assistant Director (Technical/Project), the Executive Committee in its meeting held on 13 th March 2018 had approved to increase the number of Young Civil Engineers from 6 to 12. Approval of Hon'ble MRD was obtained subsequently for increasing the number of young engineers and revision in their remuneration structure as under:
	i) 60,000-65,000/-(Graduate Engg.) ii)65,000-70,000/- (Post Graduate Engg./CA) iii) Increment @ 5% p.a. (maximum three)
	GB ratified the increase in number of posts of YCEs and enhancement of their remuneration.
	2 E Engagement of consultant for the post of Director in NRIDA
Decision of 24 th GB	DG, NRIDA informed that Shri Bharat Chandra Pradhan (retired EnC, Govt. of Odisha) has been engaged as Consultant for a period of one year from the date of his joining on a fixed remuneration of Rs.1,50,000/- p.m. While ratifying the engagement of Sh. Pradhan, Hon'ble MRD instructed that efforts be made to fill the vacancy of Director on regular
	basis. 2 F Hiring of Data Scientist/ Consultant
Decision of 24 th GB	DG, NRIDA informed that the need has been felt to create the post of Data Scientist to monitor and curb the PMGSY programme with the intention to serve the requirement of decision making authority at various levels and to provide support for improving monitoring and evaluation.
	The matter regarding creation of post of Data Scientist and hiring of a Consultant there against was also noted by the Executive Committee in its meeting held on 13 th March 2018. A selection committee subsequently constituted for the purpose had recommended selection of Shri Harsh Nisar for the said post.
	GB ratified the same.
	It was also proposed to increase remuneration payable to the Data Scientist from Rs.1.10 lakh to Rs.1.35 lakh per month on completion of one year.
	GB approved enhancement of the remuneration.
Item 2 G	Pooling Manpower from - ADB/WB
Decision of 24 th GB	i. Bridge Consultant – World Bank

DG, NRIDA informed that in order to carry out proper review of bridge proposals under PMGSY, NRIDA had floated an EoI to empanel bridge consultants to provide support to Director (Technical) in scrutiny/review of proposals including field visits for according clearance and implementation of LSB works.

Applications from only following two individuals were received who have been empanelled by NRIDA at an honorarium of Rs. 5000 per day to Rs.7,000 per day (depending on the bridge length.

- 1. Dr. Ram Kumar, (Former Chief Scientist, CRRI)
- Dr. Surjit Kumar Sharma (Former Principal Technical Officer, CSIR-CRRI)

In view of poor response received against EOI and fresh sanction of large number of bridges in PMGSY, approval is sought for engagement of a Bridge Expert Agency whose role would be as follows.

- a. Vetting of designs of bridge.
- b. Inspections of bridge during and after constructions.

GB ratified engagement of the bridge consultants and also approved the proposal for engagement of Bridge Expert Agency.

ii. Project Management Consultant (PMC)

DG, NRIDA informed that the Ministry of Rural Development has availed a loan of 500 million USD as Additional Financing from WB under PMGSY Rural Roads. The primary aim of the additional Financing project is to introduce pilot projects adopting Green and climate Resilient designs under component A. In order to ensure compliance to loan agreement covenants and to achieve agreed-upon Disbursement Linked Indicators (DLIs) within stipulated time frame, NRIDA proposed to engage the support of a dedicated Project Management Consultant (PMC) to implement the above agenda.

GB approved the proposal.

Further DG, NRIDA briefed GB about the engagement of following experts in NRIDA:

april

- iii. Road Safety Advisor ADB
- iv. GIS Expert ADB
- v. Organisational and HRD Expert ADB

The GB ratified engagement of the above experts.

Item 2 H	Setting up an Information Communication Technology (ICT) Pr Management Unit (PMU) in NRIDA	
Decision 24 th GB	of DG, NRIDA informed that number of IT projects under PMGSY has increased significantly and presently only one Data Scientist is in place at	
	NRIDA. In addition, there are three persons provided by C-DAC to ensure smoother functioning of OMMAS. Most of the data captured is through user login interface, which should move towards transaction based software. There is also an increasing demand for integration with various softwares and data platforms.	
	In view of the above, DG informed the GB regarding setting up of an exclusive ICT PMU within NRIDA with the sole focus of managing and monitoring the software development and liaison with various vendors and States. For the same, hiring of a Director (IT) with 15-20+ years of experience in IT consulting, design, development and delivery and two Product Mangers (IT) with 5+ years of experience was proposed. The remuneration was proposed as per NICSI rates for the services. The proposal is under process on file and would be sent to the competent authority for necessary approval.	
Item No.3 &	General Body approved the proposal.4i.atification of Annual Accounts of NRIDA for 2016-17 and	
Item No.3 & Decision 24 th GB	General Body approved the proposal.	
Decision	General Body approved the proposal.4i. Ratification of Annual Accounts of NRIDA for 2016-17 and 2017-18ii. Ratification of Annual Report for the year 2016-17 and 2017-18	
Decision 24 th GB	General Body approved the proposal. 4 i. Ratification of Annual Accounts of NRIDA for 2016-17 and 2017-18 ii. Ratification of Annual Report for the year 2016-17 and 2017-18 of General Body ratified the Annual Accounts/Reports.	
Decision 24 th GB Item No. 5 Decision	General Body approved the proposal. 4 i. Ratification of Annual Accounts of NRIDA for 2016-17 and 2017-18 ii. Ratification of Annual Report for the year 2016-17 and 2017-18 of General Body ratified the Annual Accounts/Reports. Extension of contract period of consultants in NRIDA of DG, informed about the extension of contact period of following consultants	
Decision 24 th GB Item No. 5 Decision	General Body approved the proposal. 4 i. Ratification of Annual Accounts of NRIDA for 2016-17 and 2017-18 ii. Ratification of Annual Report for the year 2016-17 and 2017-18 of General Body ratified the Annual Accounts/Reports. Extension of contract period of consultants in NRIDA of DG, informed about the extension of contact period of following consultants of NRIDA for one year from 01.10.2018 to 30.9.2019 1. Sh. H.S. Saini (66 years) 2. Sh. S.D. Singh (65 years)	
Decision 24 th GB Item No. 5 Decision	General Body approved the proposal. 4 i. Ratification of Annual Accounts of NRIDA for 2016-17 and 2017-18 ii. Ratification of Annual Report for the year 2016-17 and 2017-18 of General Body ratified the Annual Accounts/Reports. Extension of contract period of consultants in NRIDA of DG, informed about the extension of contact period of following consultants of NRIDA for one year from 01.10.2018 to 30.9.2019 1. Sh. H.S. Saini (66 years)	
Decision 24 th GB Item No. 5 Decision	General Body approved the proposal. 4 i. Ratification of Annual Accounts of NRIDA for 2016-17 and 2017-18 ii. Ratification of Annual Report for the year 2016-17 and 2017-18 of General Body ratified the Annual Accounts/Reports. of General Body ratified the Annual Accounts/Reports. Extension of contract period of consultants in NRIDA of DG, informed about the extension of contact period of following consultants of NRIDA for one year from 01.10.2018 to 30.9.2019 1. Sh. H.S. Saini (66 years) 2. Sh. S.D. Singh (65 years) 3. Sh. Randhir Singh (66 years) DG, NRIDA informed that as per the guidelines of HR Policy the maximum age limit of consultants should be 65 years but consultants with higher age may be considered as an exception in very deserving cases after seeking due	
Decision 24 th GB Item No. 5 Decision	General Body approved the proposal. 4 i. Ratification of Annual Accounts of NRIDA for 2016-17 and 2017-18 ii. Ratification of Annual Report for the year 2016-17 and 2017-18 of General Body ratified the Annual Accounts/Reports. Extension of contract period of consultants in NRIDA of DG, informed about the extension of contact period of following consultants of NRIDA for one year from 01.10.2018 to 30.9.2019 1. Sh. H.S. Saini (66 years) 2. Sh. S.D. Singh (65 years) 3. Sh. Randhir Singh (66 years) DG, NRIDA informed that as per the guidelines of HR Policy the maximum age limit of consultants should be 65 years but consultants with higher age	
Decision 24 th GB Item No. 5 Decision	General Body approved the proposal. 4 i. Ratification of Annual Accounts of NRIDA for 2016-17 and 2017-18 ii. Ratification of Annual Report for the year 2016-17 and 2017-18 of General Body ratified the Annual Accounts/Reports. of General Body ratified the Annual Accounts/Reports. Extension of contract period of consultants in NRIDA of DG, informed about the extension of contact period of following consultants of NRIDA for one year from 01.10.2018 to 30.9.2019 1. Sh. H.S. Saini (66 years) 2. Sh. S.D. Singh (65 years) 3. Sh. Randhir Singh (66 years) DG, NRIDA informed that as per the guidelines of HR Policy the maximum age limit of consultants should be 65 years but consultants with higher age may be considered as an exception in very deserving cases after seeking due	

ans

Decision of 24 th GB	DG, NRIDA informed the committee that the contract agreement with Mass Management has come to an end on 30.11.18 and a new contract agreement has been entered with M/s Aroon Aviation Pvt. Ltd for a period of one year w.e.f 1.1.2018 to 30.11.2019	
	General body ratified the renewal of the contract.	
Item No. 7	Opening/deletion of new sub-heads	
Decision of 24 th GB	DG, NRIDA informed the committee about New sub heads opened/deleted for accounting purpose in Programme Fund, Maintenance Fund and Administrative Expenses Fund since last GB	
Item No. 8	General body ratified the opening/deletion of sub-heads	
11em 140, 8	Entitlement of Travel and payment of DA to undergraduate Civil Engineering Students on Internship Programme in NRIDA	
Decision of 24 th GB	DG, NRIDA informed that EC dated 13 th March 2018 had proposed that Interns may be granted stipend of Rs.10,000/- per month. Rs.1200/- per day for Hotel accommodation and Rs.500/- per day for Food expenses. Travel by 3rd AC/AC Chair Car and by bus other than AC bus as per actual. General Body approved the proposal.	
Item No. 9	NRIDA (Medical Attendance) Byelaws, 2004 - Revision of Rules	
Decision of 24 th GB	DG, NRIDA informed that modifications have been made in the existing Medical Attendance Rules of NRIDA and EC in its meeting dated 13.3.2018 had agreed to modify the existing Rules. General Body opined to re-examine the matter with reference to the CSMA rules and the submit the same on file.	
Item No. 10.	Loan from NABARD for Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana- Gramin (PMAY)	
Decision of 24 th GB	JS (RH) informed that total outlay approved is Rs. 81,975/- crore for construction of one crore houses in a period of 3 years (2016-17 to 2018- 19). Rs. 60,000 crore would be met from budgetary sources and balance Rs. 21,975 crore shall be met through borrowing from National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development (NABARD) by NRIDA. Rs. 14,495 crore has been disbursed by NABARD till Dec. 2018 and the balance loan will be taken during the current financial year. GB took note of the information.	
Item No. 11	Revision of Rural Roads Manual and QHAB.	
Decision of 24 th GB		
	Revision of Rural Roads Manual IRC SP:20:2002 published by IRC in	

(

	2002 is under process.		
	Concered Body tools note of the information		
Item No. 12 (a)	General Body took note of the information. Implementation of web GIS for PMGSY		
Decision of 24 th GB	DG, NRIDA informed GB that GIS has been completed in all the 27 states except J&K and has been hosted in the website www.pmgsy-grris.nic.in. General Body took note of the information.		
Item No. 12 (b)	No Cost Extension to MoU between NRIDA and CDAC for the Implementation of National Web GIS under PMGSY		
Decision of 24 th GB	DG, NRIDA informed GB that the GIS project was accorded "No cost extension of Time" for a period of 12 months i.e upto 20 th January, 2019		
	General Body ratified the "No Cost Extension to the MoU.		
Item No. 12 (c)	GRISS+ enhancements in GIS		
Decision of 24 th GB	DG, NRIDA informed the committee that GIS has to play a significant role in PMGSY. Therefore, it is proposed to carry out the enhancement in the next phase of GIS in the form of GRISS+ in PMGSY-III.		
	General Body ratified the same.		
Item No. 13	Implementation of e-Marg		
Decision of 24 th GB	DG, NRIDA informed about the software for monitoring road maintenance named 'e-Marg' with the total project cost of Rs. 466.16 lakh. An MoU was signed on 27 th December, 2018 between MoRD, NIC and NICSI. The project period will be 36 months and will be implemented in all states.		
1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.	General Body ratified the MoU.		
Item No. 14	Status of Externally Aided Project		
Decision of 24 th GB	a. <u>World Bank RRP-II</u>		
	DG, NRIDA informed about the Status of Externally Aided Project under PMGSY RRP-II with a loan of USD 1400 million which has already been closed in April 2018. An Additional Financing (AF) of 500 Million USD has been approved with counterpart funding of 500 Million USD by GoI The project is effective from 18 th June 2018, for 32 months. So far an amount of 37 Million USD has been disbursed under the project.		
	General Body took note of the information.		
	(b) (I) to (III): Status of ADB assisted projects RCIP		
	DG, NRIDA informed GB regarding the status of disbursement of loan under RCIP and SRCIP. The DG further informed that ADB funded program in state of Assam, Chhattisgarh, Madhya Pradesh, Odisha and Wes Bengal is supported by following three consultancy services to assist MoRI		

C

	and the RCIP/SRCIP states:
	a. Technical Support Consultant
	b. Road Safety Consultant c. Institutional Support Consultant
	General Body took note of the information.
	(IV) DG informed that the publication of Rural road Safety Manual wareleased on 19 th June 2017.
	General Body took note of the information.
	(V) DG informed that ADB has approved technical assistance grant of an amount not exceeding 0.5 MUSD on 14 th December 2017 for enhancing sustainability and innovation in rural road development. For this, ADB has engaged Finnish Overseas Consultants Ltd. and AD has also hired Mr. Subhash C. Nigam as Rural Road Maintenance Specialist w.e.f 10 th December 2018.
	General Body took note of the information.
Item No. 15	Quality Issues
Decision of 24 th GB	a. Quality of Built infrastructure
	DG, NRIDA informed that the average "Unsatisfactory" percentage for the last 3 years was 7.35% in case of completed projects inspected by NQM against the target set by NITI Aayog (less than 5%) whereas the "Unsatisfactory" percentage in case of projects under maintenance was 25.77 % during the same period against the target (Less than 15%) set be NITI Aayog.
	General Body took note of the information.
	b. Strengthening of Independent Quality Monitoring under 3 rd tier:
	DG, NRIDA informed that the performance of NQMs is periodically reviewed and also their strength is augmented. In the Selection Committee meeting dated 21.08.2018, a total of 52 NQMs were selected out of whice 22 have already been empanelled and in case of remaining 30, Star recommendations were awaited.
	General Body took note of the information.
	c. Augmenting the number of SQM and NQM inspections
	DG, NRIDA informed that to improve the quality control mechanism, the SQM and NQM inspection targets have been significantly increased. Presently 104 NQMs are engaged under 3 rd Tier of QM. Taking an average of the second sec

	of 10 inspections per month by one NQM and considering an average months of deployment, about 8320 inspections can be carried out with present strength of NQMs.	
	General Body took note of the information.	
Decision of 24 th GB	Any other Item with the approval of the President DG, NRIDA informed the GB about the following IT led Initiatives and Process Engineering during 2018-19:	
	a. 100% PFMS compliance and Accounting Module	
	All the states are now covered under PFMS. DG, NRIDA informed that 8053 Cr transactions have been made since August, 2018 through PFMS.	
	b. Mapping of PMGSY roads - NRSC and CGARD	
	Verification of road length constructed through satellite imagery and benefitted connected habitations.	
	c. GRISS+ All the states were onboard with digitized DRRP except J&K	
	d. GEPNIC-OMMAS Integration	
	Micro tracking of work from sanction to award	
	e. Smart allocation of Inspections For ensuring coverage and parity in allocation of inspections to NQMs	
	DG, NRIDA also informed that the State of Uttrakand was suggested to take up Bailey bridge. State of Odisha and Assam have already constructed Bailey Bridges.	
	General Body took note of the information.	

Hon'ble Minister at the end stated that PMGSY has achieved many milestones and PMGSY-I is in the closing stages. The pace of work in the month of December has touched 150 km per day which is commendable but in order to achieve the overall targets for the financial year 2018-19, there is a need to increase the pace of work in the remaining part of the year. In view of inclusion of Housing sector in NRRDA and its renaming to NRIDA, Hon'ble MRD desired to initiate re-constitution of the GB and also directed to include Hon'ble Minister of State, MoRD in appropriate capacity therein. In this connection JS(RH) submitted that the proposed restructuring would require additional posts, for which formal proposal would be moved separately.

The meeting ended with a vote of thanks to Chair.

Annexure 1

List of Members /Representative present in the General Body Meeting

- 1. Hon'ble Minister, MoRD & President NRIDA.
- 2. Shri Amarjeet Sinha, Secretary, Ministry of Rural Development, Government of India, Krishi Bhawan, New Delhi
- 3. Shri B. Pradhan, Addl. Secretary and Financial Advisor, Ministry of Rural Development, Government of India, Krishi Bhawan, New Delhi
- 4. Shri Sanjeev Kumar, Chief Engineer, Ministry of Road Transport and Highways, Transport Bhavan, MoRTH, 1 Sansad Marg, New Delhi
- 5. Ms Kiran Gupta, Director, Niti Aayog, Government of India, Commission, Room No. 264, Yojana Bhawan, New Delhi.
- 6. Smt Alka Upadhyaya, Joint Secretary, Ministry of Rural Development, Government of India and Director General, NRIDA, New Delhi
- 7. Dr. Surabhi Rai, Dy. Secretary (RC), Ministry of Rural Development, Government of India, Krishi Bhawan, New Delhi
- 8. Mahesh Kumar Goel, Chief Engineer, SRRDA, Room No. 603, 6th floor, Department of PWD (Roads & Bridges), Government of Punjab, Mini Secretariate- 2, Chandigrah, Punjab
- 9. Shri Santokh Singh, SRRDA, Room No. 603, 6th floor, Department of PWD (Roads & Bridges), Government of Punjab, Mini Secretariate- 2, Chandigrah, Punjab
- 10. Shri Uday Raj Singh, CEO, PMGSY, Rural Development Department, Government of Uttarakhand, 4B, Subash Road, Dehradun, Uttarakhand
- 11. Shri Manish Kumar Mittal, EE, PMGSY, Rural Development Department, Government of Uttarakhand, 4B, Subash Road, Dehradun, Uttarakhand.
- 12. Shri S.K. Tripathi, Addl. DGBR, Border Roads Organisation, 274-Seema Sadak Bhawan, Ring Road, Naraina, Delhi Cantt, New Delhi 110010
- 13. Prof. G.J. Joshi, Dean(Academic), Civil Engineering Deptt., Sardar Vallabhbhai National Institute of Technology (SVNIT), Surat, Gujarat -395007
- 14. Dr. Mahesh Kumar, Engineer-in-Chief, PWD(B&R), C-52, Galaxy Apartment, Sector-43, Gurgaon, Haryana

PMGSY AT A GLANCE

Out of total eligible 1,78,184 habitations 1,58,217 has already been sanctioned, out of which 1,45,047 habitations have already been connected. Only 211 habitations are balance to be sanctioned. DG, informed that the target for completion of PMGSY-I is march 2019.

For LWE out of 6432 habitations sanctioned, 2321 have been connected and 4111 are balance to be connected.

With respect to PMGSY-II out of total target of 50,000 km 32,676 km have been sanctioned out of which 24660 km have been completed. DG, NRIDA informed that 8 states have more than 90% completion. 12 States are remained to transit under PMGSY-II.

DG, informed the committee that at present we have 89,900 km works in hand. It was reiterated to achieve the target of 58,000 km road length construction, a pace of 400 km/ day is required. Till date only 22,262 km have been constructed which has been behind schedule and slower that the last year's December achievement with the pace of 78 km/ day. In December, the pace increased to 150 km/ day. It was emphasized that now the pace has to be more than doubled to 400 km/day.

Secretary RD, and Vice president, NRIDA informed that states especially Assam and Bihar to push their limits and connect more habitations.

With respect to habitations connectivity only 8% habitations are left to be connected. DG, emphasized that some of the state are having more than 1000 km of road works balance to be constructed. General Body was also informed that 6529 km of roads have been constructed using Green Technology in 2018-19 as against the target of 12,000 km.

Regarding unsatisfactory Grading V/S NQM Inspection Relation in completed work DG, NRIDA informed that average unsatisfactory grading for 2018-19 till December, 18 is 7.35% as against the national target of 5% and with respect with ongoing works it is 8.66 % in 2018-19 till December, 2018.

Government of India Ministry of rural development National Rural Infrastructure Development Agency 5th Floor, 15-NBCC Tower, Bhikaji Cama Place New Delhi

F.No: F 20011/360904/2018/F&A

Dated: 18.02.2019

<u>Corrigendum</u>

Please refer to this office letter of even no. dated 07.02.2019 forwarding therewith the Minutes of 24th General Body Meeting. The last para of the Minutes (page 10) may be read as:

Existing para	Read as
"Hon'ble Minister at the end stated that PMGSY has achieved many milestones and PMGSY-I is in the closing stages. The pace of work in the month of December has touched 150 km per day which is commendable but in order to achieve the overall targets for the financial year 2018- 19, there is a need to increase the pace of work in the remaining part of the year. In view of inclusion of Housing sector in NRRDA and its renaming to NRIDA , Hon'ble MRD desired to initiate re- constitution of the GB and also directed to include Hon'ble Minister of State, MoRD in appropriate capacity therein. In this connection JS(RH) submitted that the proposed restructuring would require additional posts, for which formal proposal would be moved separately.	Hon'ble Minister at the end stated that PMGSY has achieved many milestones and PMGSY-I is in the closing stages. The pace of work in the month of December has touched 150 km per day which is commendable but in order to achieve the overall targets for the financial year 2018- 19, there is a need to increase the pace of work in the remaining part of the year. In view of inclusion of Housing sector in NRRDA and its renaming to NRIDA, Hon'ble MRD proposed to initiate re- constitution of the GB to include Hon'ble Minister of State, MoRD in appropriate capacity therein. JS(RH) proposed that there is a need for some additional manpower, it was decided that detailed proposal would be moved for the same".

This issues with the approval of Competent Authority.

(Uttam Kumar) Director (F&A)

То

3,

- 1. PPS to Hon'ble Minister, MoRD & President NRIDA.
- 2. PPS to Hon, ble Minister of State for Rural Development.
 - Shri Amarjeet Sinha, Secretary, Ministry of Rural Development, Government of India, Krishi Bhawan, New Delhi
- 4. Shri B. Pradhan, Addl. Secretary and Financial Advisor, Ministry of Rural Development, Government of India, Krishi Bhawan, New Delhi

- 5. Shri B.N. Singh, Director General (RD) & Special Secretary, Ministry of Road Transport and Highways, Transport Bhavan, MoRTH, 1 Sansad Marg, New Delhi
- 6. Shri Anil Srivastava, Pr. Advisor (Transport), Niti Aayog, Government of India, Commission, Room No. 264, Yojana Bhawan, New Delhi.
- 7. Shri Debasis Pal, Director, Ministry of Panchayati Raj, Government of India, Sardar Patel Bhawan,1st Floor, Sansand Marg, New Delhi
- 8. Smt Alka Upadhyaya, Joint Secretary, Ministry of Rural Development, Government of India and Director General, NRIDA, New Delhi
- 9. Dr. Surabhi Rai, Dy. Secretary (RC), Ministry of Rural Development, Government of India, Krishi Bhawan, New Delhi
- Shri Siddhanta Das, Director General, Forest & Special Secretary, Ministry of Environment and Forests, Paryavaran Bhawan, Jal Wing, 4th Floor, Near Jor Bagh Metro Station, Jor Bagh, New Delhi.
- Shri Saurabh Kumar Das, Addl. Chief Secretary & CEO, Panchayat & Rural Development Department, Government of West Bengal, Jt. Administrative Building, Block HC/7,6th floor, Sector 111, Salt Lake City, Kolkata 700 106, West Bengal
- 12. Shri Rajesh Kemprai, Commissioner cum Spl. Secretary, Public Works Department, Government of Assam, P.O Assam Sachivalaya, Block-B, Dispur, Guwahati, ASSAM
- 13. Princial Secretary, Panchayati Raj & Rural Development Department, Karnataka Government Secretariat, Room No. 311, 3rd Floor Multi Storied Building, Ambedkar Road, Bangalore, Karnataka
- 14. Shri Hussan Lal, IAS, Principal Secretary, SRRDA, Room No. 603, 6th floor, Department of PWD (Roads & Bridges), Government of Punjab, Mini Secretariate- 2, Chandigrah, Punjab
- 15. Shri Anurag Srivastava, Principal Secretary, Rural Development Department, Government of Uttar Pradesh. Room No. 67, Sachiv Bhawan, Civil Secretariat, Lucknow, Uttar Pradesh
- 16. Smt. Manisha Panwar, Pr.Secretary, Rural Development Department, Government of Uttarakhand, 4B, Subash Road, Dehradun, Uttarakhand.
- 17. Prof. Satish Chandra, Director, Central Road Research Institute, PO CRRI, Mathura Road, New Delhi.
- Lt. Gen. Harpal Singh, AVSM, Director General, Border Roads Organisation, 274-Seema Sadak Bhawan, Ring Road, Naraina, Delhi Cantt, New Delhi 110010
- 19. Dr. Anoop Kumar Mittal, Chairman & Managing Director, National Buildings Construction Corporation Limited, NBCC Bhawan, Lodhi Road, New Delhi
- 20. Prof. G.J. Joshi, Dean(Academic), Civil Engineering Deptt., Sardar Vallabhbhai National Institute of Technology (SVNIT), Surat, Gujarat -395007
- 21. Dr. Mahesh Kumar, Engineer-in-Chief, PWD(B&R), C-52, Galaxy Apartment, Sector-43, Gurgaon, Haryana

Copy to:

- 1. Shri Mam Chand, DS(Fin), MoRD, Krishi Bhawan, New Delhi
- 2. Ms Mamta, Jt. Director, MoRD, Krishi Bhawan, New Delhi
- 3. Director(Tech/P-I/P-III)
- 4. PA to Director(F&A)
